
 

 

Agenda 

 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Friday, 26 August 2022 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Cabinet 

 
Date Tuesday, 6 September 2022 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, 

Northallerton, DL6 2UU 
 

 
Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 

 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs I Sanderson 
M G Taylor 

P R Thompson 
S Watson 
D A Webster 

 
Other Members of the Council for information  
 
Members of the press and public are able to observe the meeting virtually via Teams.  Please click on 
the link on the website or dial 020 3855 5195 followed by the Conference ID: 822 170 095#  For 
further information please contact Democratic Services on telephone 01609 767015 or email 
committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
  Page No 
1.  Minutes 

 
 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 5 July 2022 (CA.9 - 
CA.17), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

Resources Management   
 

3.  York and North Yorkshire Devolution Deal 
 

1 - 32 

 This report advises Cabinet of the proposed devolution deal to allow 
Members to review the deal; approve the required governance review; 
and approve the move to public consultation on the deal during Autumn 
2022. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the proposed Devolution Deal; the proposed 
Governance Review for the devolution deal and the establishment of a 
Combined Mayoral Authority for York and North Yorkshire; and that a 
public consultation on the Scheme be undertaken during Autumn 2022. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

4.  2022/23 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report 
 

33 - 46 

 This report provides the Quarter 1 update at 30 June 2022 on the 
progress of the capital programme 2022/23 and the treasury 
management position.  A full schedule of the capital programme 
2022/23 is attached at Annex A, together with the relevant update on 
progress of each scheme. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the net increase of £404,149 in the capital 
programme to £21,572,865 and all expenditure movements as detailed 
in Annex B and also in the capital programme attached at Annex A of 
the report; the increase of capital expenditure of £556,592 funded as 
follows: £483,018 is from external grants/contributions and £73,574 from 
borrowing; and the funding allocation to the capital programme as 
detailed in paragraph 3.1 and 3.2 of the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

5.  2022/23 Q1 Revenue Monitoring Report 
 

47 - 54 

 This report provides an update on the revenue budget position of the 
Council and the reserve funds at the end of June 2022. 
 
 
 

 



In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council that the budget remains at £11,366,370 as 
detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the report for 2022/23; Cabinet will approve 
that £200,000 of the Quarter 1 underspend is transferred to the Local 
Government Reorganisation Reserve as detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the 
report; and the departmental budget movements as detailed within 
paragraph 3.6 of the report. 
 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

6.  Hackney Carriage Table of Fares 
 

55 - 62 

 This report asks Cabinet to consider the four objections to the proposed 
Hackney Carriage Table of Fares. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, that Cabinet will considers the 
objections and either approve the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares 
contained in Annex A to this report to take effect from 1st October 2022, 
or modify the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares with the modified Table 
of Fares to take effect from 1st October 2022. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

7.  Annual report on the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee's 
activities for 2021/22 
 

63 - 66 

 This report presents a report which analyses the work undertaken by 
the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee up to 31 March 
2022. An analysis of the work undertaken is attached at Annex A to 
the report. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will endorse the report of the 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

Policy Implementation   
 

8.  Energy Rebate Discretionary Scheme 
 

67 - 70 

 This report sets out the proposed Discretionary Council Tax Rebate  
Discretionary scheme criteria that is being recommended for approval.   
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve the proposed 
Council Tax Rebate Discretionary Fund 2022-23 scheme as set out in 
the report; delegate authority to the Council’s Section 151 Officer to 
make amendments to the Council Tax Rebate Discretionary Scheme 
eligibility criteria to ensure that government  funding is directed to 
support vulnerable households, if needed; and delegate authority to 
officers in the revenues team to administer the agreed schemes. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards  



 
9.  Business Rates - S47 Discretionary Rate Relief – Heat Network Relief 

 
71 - 72 

 This report seeks approval for the changes to the discretionary rates 
relief policy to reflect the introduction of a discretionary rate relief 
scheme giving business rate relief for properties that are used for the 
purpose of a heat network. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approve the adoption of 
the heat network rate relief for 2022/23 only and to the change to the 
Non domestic discretionary relief policy to include the new heat network 
rate relief for 2022/23 as per government guidance. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

 



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: York & North Yorkshire Devolution Deal 
 
Portfolio Holder: Leader of the Council  
 Councillor M S Robson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 To advise Cabinet of the proposed devolution deal to:  

• allow Members to review the deal; 

• note the outcome of the Governance Review; and  

• approve the move to public consultation on the Scheme during Autumn 2022. 
 
1.2 A summary of the devolution deal is included as Annex 1 to the report outlining all 

the key points of the draft deal including the additional funding that would become 
available. 
 

1.3 An integral part of the deal is moving to new governance arrangements which 
requires the establishment of a Combined Authority and directly elected Mayor for 
the York and North Yorkshire geography. This body and the Mayor will provide 
strategic leadership across the region, seek the best value for taxpayers’ money, 
will be directly accountable to the region’s electorate and receive new and devolved 
powers relating to transport, housing and skills.  
 

1.4 In accordance with the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction 
Act 2009 a governance review has been undertaken for the Combined Authority 
area.  The Governance Review concluded that the current governance 
arrangements do not represent the best model for the ambitions of the constituent 
authorities in terms of delivering their long-term ambitions for economic growth.  
The Governance Review accepted that the statutory criteria in the 2009 Act are met 
in creating a Mayoral Combined Authority for York and North Yorkshire as it will 
improve the exercise of statutory functions in the area. 
 

1.5 The next stage of the process is for the constituent authorities to publish and 
consult on a Scheme setting out the proposals for the creation, governance and 
functions of the Combined Authority.  At the end of that consultation period a 
summary of the responses received will be submitted to the Secretary of State.  The 
Secretary of State will then decide whether they are satisfied that the statutory 
criteria are met to allow the making of the necessary orders and whether the 
authorities have provided their consent to the making of the Order.  It is anticipated 
that at the time of the decision the relevant authorities will be North Yorkshire 
Council and the City of York Council.   

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1.6 The devolution process seeks Council feedback on the deal and the new 
governance arrangements. It also invites the Council to agree to move to the public 
consultation on the proposals through the publication of the Scheme identified 
above. The timetable for the deal seeks Council feedback and approval to proceed 
to consultation on the Scheme in Autumn 2022. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The devolution deal contains measures and investment that will deliver against the 

majority of the Council’s priorities. The Council Plan priorities supported by the 
associated devolution deal measures are: 

 

• Driving Economic Vitality 
- £18 million per year allocation of investment funding over 30 years to be 

invested in York and North Yorkshire to drive growth and take forward its 
priorities over the longer term. 

- Broadband and mobile infrastructure rollout to ensure 100% coverage in York 
and North Yorkshire. 

- New powers to better shape local skills provision to meet the needs of the 
local economy, including devolution of the core Adult Education Budget, as 
well as input into the new Local Skills Improvement Plans 
 

• Caring for the Environment 
- £7 million investment to enable York and North Yorkshire to drive green 

economic growth towards their ambitions to be a carbon negative region. 
This investment is subject to agreement of a submitted business case. 

- Support to develop a Natural Capital Investment Plan for York and North 
Yorkshire. 

 

• Providing a Special Place to Live 
- New powers to drive the regeneration of the area and to build more 

affordable homes including compulsory purchase powers and the ability to 
establish a Mayoral Development Corporation. 

- Over £13 million for the building of new homes on brownfield land across 
2023/24 and 2024/25, subject to sufficient eligible projects for funding being 
identified. 

- Investment of up to £2.65 million on projects that support York and North 
Yorkshire’s priority to deliver affordable, low carbon homes across the area, 
subject to a final business case. 

 

• Enhancing Health and Well being 
- Many of the above measure including better housing, natural capital 

improvements and improved services will contribute to the Councils 
Enhancing Health and Well Being priority. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 Risk in approving the recommendations - given the devolution deal will only come 

into force post Local Government Reorganisation there are no risks to the Council 
associated with approving the recommendation. 

 
 

Page 2



3.2 The key risk is in not approving the recommendations as shown below:- 
   

Risk Implication Gross 
Prob 

Gross 
Imp 

Gross 
Total 

Preventative 
action 

Net 
Prob 

Net 
Imp 

Net 
Total 

Reputational 
risk to the 
Council 

Not agreeing to the 
requests to approve 
the governance 
review and public 
consultation could 
delay or derail the 
process and cast 
the Council as a 
barrier to 
development and 
investment. 

3 4 12 Approve 
governance 
review and the 
move to public 
consultation on 
the deal 

1 4 4 

 
Overall the risk of agreeing with the recommendations outweighs the risks of not 
agreeing them and is considered acceptable.  

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications for the Council associated with the report. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 Legislation provides that the constituent authorities of the proposed Combined 

Authority (York City Council and the new North Yorkshire Council) must carry out a 
governance review of the area and, dependent on the result of the review, prepare 
and consult with the public on a Scheme to implement the proposals to create the 
Combined Authority.  The constituent authorities must consent to the creation of the 
Combined Authority.  Although Hambleton District Council is not a constituent 
authority of the proposed Combined Authority due to its abolition on 31 March 2023, 
members are asked to note and support the steps being taken by City of York 
Council and North Yorkshire County Council to support its creation.    

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
7.0 Recommendations      
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:   
 

(1) the proposed Devolution Deal; 
 
(2) the proposed Governance Review for the devolution deal and the 

establishment of a Combined Mayoral Authority for York and North Yorkshire; 
and 

  

Page 3



 
(3)  a public consultation on the Scheme during Autumn 2022. 

 
 
Mick Jewitt 
Deputy Chief Executive 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: MH 
 
Contact: Mark Haynes 
  Business & Economy Project Manager 
  Tel: 767056 

Page 4



OFFICIAL

We are York & North Yorkshire

city region and rural powerhouse

P
age 5



OFFICIAL

We are York & 
North Yorkshire –
city region and
rural powerhouse City of York and North Yorkshire councils have 

negotiated a proposed devolution deal between central 

government and local authorities for York and North 

Yorkshire.

We are York & North Yorkshire

The journey starts here.

P
age 6



OFFICIAL

What does it
mean?

We are York & North Yorkshire

• The proposed devolution deal, if agreed by respective councils and informed 

by public consultation, would deliver more local powers and decision 

making and more funding.

• As it stands today, the proposed deal is worth £750m to York & North 

Yorkshire and would see a regionally elected mayor champion our region 

and form a direct relationship with government to secure future funding.

• Together with more devolved funding for transport, education and business 

support, an elected mayor would lead a mayoral combined authority to 

invest upwards of £95million per year.

P
age 7



OFFICIAL

What does it
mean?

We are York & North Yorkshire

• This would give us a chance to level up with our 

neighbouring regions that have already devolved and 

currently have elected metro mayors, driving up their 

economies.

• This is an historic moment and the first powerful step 

towards long term change.

P
age 8



OFFICIAL

What happens
next?

We are York & North Yorkshire

• Local councillors, residents and businesses will now review the deal in detail 

over the summer and councillors will then collectively decide whether to 

proceed to consultation on the deal.

• A public consultation in October to December will give you a chance to have 

your say.

Find out more and sign up for our newsletter by 
visiting: www.ynydevolution.com

P
age 9



OFFICIAL

The proposed 
devolution deal

#WeareYNY

P
age 10



OFFICIAL

Breakdown of the deal
by theme

We are York & North Yorkshire

• The following pages outline the content of the proposed 

devolution deal. All the proposed details outlined here will 

be reviewed by Councillors, residents and businesses over 

the summer.  Councillors will then collectively decide 

whether to proceed to public consultation on the deal.

P
age 11



OFFICIAL

Governance

• York and North Yorkshire would establish a 

combined authority and directly elect a mayor to 

provide strategic leadership across the region, seek 

the best value for taxpayer’s money, be directly 

accountable to the region’s electorate and to receive 

new and devolved powers transport, housing and 

skills.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 12



OFFICIAL

Mayoral Investment
Fund

• The Mayor would work with partner councils and 

regional stakeholders  to invest £18 million per 

year allocation of funding over 30 years (35% 

capital, 65% revenue), invested by York and North 

Yorkshire to drive growth to unlock growth and 

innovation and help us tackle local challenges, such 

as affordable housing and low wages. It could also 

be used to support our ambitious target to be 

England’s first carbon negative region.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 13



OFFICIAL

Transport

We are York & North Yorkshire

• New powers to improve and better integrate local 

transport, including control of appropriate local transport 

functions e.g. local transport plans, and control of a Key 

Route Network.

• An integrated transport settlement starting in 2024/25 

and an additional £800,000 to support the 

development of an integrated approach to regional 

transport. 

• A commitment to explore a local partnership with 

Great British Railways to help shape and improve local 

rail.

P
age 14



OFFICIAL

Skills

We are York & North Yorkshire

• New powers to shape local skills provision to meet the needs of the local 

economy, including devolution of the core Adult Education Budget, as 

well as input into the new Local Skills Improvement Plans.

• The Government recognises the challenges facing York and North 

Yorkshire, with coastal and rural communities experiencing a complex 

range of issues, such as poor connectivity. There is a need to develop and 

deliver targeted programmes to address the unique and very different 

challenges across such a large and diverse region. York and North 

Yorkshire will work in partnership to develop proactive support for 

these groups through ongoing engagement with local Department for 

Work and Pensions Jobcentre Plus.

P
age 15



OFFICIAL

Housing & Regeneration

We are York & North Yorkshire

• New powers to drive the regeneration of the area and to build more affordable homes 

including compulsory purchase powers and the ability to establish Mayoral Development 

Corporations.

• Over £13 million for the building of new homes on brownfield land across 2023/24 and 

2024/25, subject to sufficient eligible projects for funding being identified.

• Investment of up to £2.65 million on projects that support York and North Yorkshire’s 

priority to deliver affordable, low carbon homes across the area, subject to final business cases.

• Subject to a full business case, demonstrating the value of the scheme in delivering housing, jobs 

and GVA to the area, the government is minded to provide additional support to the York Central 

brownfield regeneration scheme.

• York and North Yorkshire and Homes England are committed, with the support of DLUHC, to 

working collaboratively – combining their skills and capacity – to unlock the barriers to rural 

affordable housing delivery, the regeneration of market towns and wider housing growth 

through the development of a pipeline for the region.

• Homes England, DLUHC, and the combined authority will also collectively explore how wider 

measures – including viability assessments and the planning system – could better support York and 

North Yorkshire’s plans to increase much needed  affordable housing supply, and in partnership test 

how the emerging Homes England rural strategy could assist in this.

P
age 16



OFFICIAL

Net Zero &
Natural Capital

We are York & North Yorkshire

• £7m investment to enable York and North 

Yorkshire to drive green economic growth 

towards their ambitions to be a carbon negative 

region. This investment is subject to agreement of 

submitted business case.

• Support to develop a Natural Capital Investment 

plan for York and North Yorkshire.

P
age 17



OFFICIAL

UK Shared Prosperity
Fund

We are York & North Yorkshire

• York and North Yorkshire Combined Authority 

would plan and deliver the UK Shared Prosperity 

Fund (UKSPF) from 2025/26.

P
age 18



OFFICIAL

Arts &
Culture

We are York & North Yorkshire

• Commitments for The Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) and its Arms 

Length Bodies to work in partnership with the area on the development and 

delivery of strategies to realise the region’s cultural potential.

• Tourism and the Visitor Economy are crucial industries for York and North Yorkshire, 

with the region attracting large numbers of leisure and business visitors every year, 

including through its cultural and heritage offer. To help support this key industry, 

DCMS will work with York and North Yorkshire Combined Authority to explore 

the best structures and geographies for future Destination Management and 

Marketing interventions. This will be informed by the forthcoming DCMS response 

to the De Bois review of Destination Management Organisations in England.

P
age 19



OFFICIAL

Digital

We are York & North Yorkshire

• Engagement on broadband and mobile 

infrastructure rollout to ensure 100% coverage 

in York and North Yorkshire

• Engagement on the development of the 

Scarborough Cyber Cluster.

P
age 20



OFFICIAL

BioYorkshire

We are York & North Yorkshire

• A commitment to establish a programme working 

group in support of the BioYorkshire

programme. Including the with governments 

innovation agencies, Innovate UK and UKRI

P
age 21



OFFICIAL

Integration of the
Local Enterprise Partnership

We are York & North Yorkshire

• Integration of the York & North Yorkshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership (Y&NY LEP) into York and 

North Yorkshire Combined Authority. This will 

ensure there continues to be a strong and 

independent local business voice which informs 

local decision making.

P
age 22



OFFICIAL

Integration of the
Office of the Police Fire and 
Crime Commissioner & 
Local Resilience

We are York & North Yorkshire

• A key leadership role for the mayor in public safety, taking 

on the role and functions of the Office of the Police Fire & 

Crime Commissioner (PFCC) and having a clear role in 

local resilience and civil contingency planning, 

preparation and delivery. 

P
age 23



OFFICIAL

Frequently asked questions

Answers to some questions you might have about 
devolution for York and North Yorkshire.

P
age 24



OFFICIAL

What is
devolution?

Devolution is when some powers of decision making and funding 

are transferred to an area (York and North Yorkshire in our case) so 

that decisions around how money is invested into the economy can 

be based on local intelligence and made by people who understand 

local needs best.   For York and North Yorkshire, the proposed 

devolution deal would give our region a direct relationship with 

central government through a regional mayor.  The mayor could 

increase investment into the region to maximise our unique 

potential for growth and tackle local challenges such as affordable 

housing and low wages. Devolution is our once in a lifetime chance 

to address our challenges and harness our unique potential for 

growth benefitting York, North Yorkshire and the whole of the UK. 

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 25



OFFICIAL

What is a proposed
devolution deal?

City of York and North Yorkshire councils have negotiated a 

proposed devolution deal between central government and 

local authorities for York and North Yorkshire. The proposed 

deal includes introducing a regionally elected mayor to 

champion our region at a national level. It details the areas of 

additional funding and the governance procedures around the 

devolved funding and decision making. Local councillors will 

review the deal in detail over the summer, and collectively 

decide whether to proceed to consultation on the 

deal. Details of what is in the proposed deal are summarised 

on the previous pages.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 26



OFFICIAL

What is a 
mayor?

An elected mayor is a regional leader directly elected by the people. The Localism 

Act (2011) made the provision for the creation of directly elected mayors. A 

mayor for York and North Yorkshire would be a strong local leader responsible 

for delivering better local outcomes and championing our region at a national 

level. The proposed devolution deal as it stands today is worth around £750m. 

Together with more devolved funding for transport, education and business 

support, an elected mayor would lead a mayoral combined authority to invest a 

budget of up to £95 million per year. The mayor would also hold responsibility 

for the Office of the Police Fire and Crime Commissioner. An elected mayor has a 

different role to a civic mayor. A civic mayor is a ceremonial representative with 

no formal powers. Fellow members of a town, borough or city council 

traditionally choose them. The civic mayor is the first citizen of the borough and 

always has precedence unless royalty or the Lord Lieutenant is present.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 27



OFFICIAL

What is a
mayoral
combined 
authority?

The Local Government Association describes a combined authority (CA) as ‘a legal body set up using 

national legislation that enables a group of two or more councils to collaborate and take /collective 

decisions across council boundaries. While established by Parliament, CAs are locally owned and 

have to be initiated and supported by the councils involved.’ A mayoral combined authority is a 

combined authority governed by a regionally elected mayor. The proposed mayoral devolution 

agreement for York and North Yorkshire would establish an elected mayor for the region. The mayor 

would lead a new mayoral combined authority (MCA). This organisation would be set up to work in 

partnership with local authorities to deliver the devolved investment, and would govern the wider 

functions of the mayor. City of York and North Yorkshire councils* will continue as they are, working 

at a local level to deliver vital services for residents.

* Following the government consultation on local government reorganisation it was announced in July 2021 that the 

current county, district and borough councils in North Yorkshire would be replaced by a new single council in April 

2023, with City of York Council remaining as it is. City of York council and North Yorkshire council will continue to 

work at a local level to deliver vital services to residents. The mayoral combined authority would deliver at a regional 

scale working in partnership with the two unitary authorities to deliver the devolved investment.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 28



OFFICIAL

What is the 
sequence of events?

The proposed devolution timetable for York and North Yorkshire at the time 

of writing is as follows: 

• Summer 22 - Proposed devolution agreement for York and North 

Yorkshire on the table  

• Summer 2022 - Review by all local councillors

• Autumn 2022 - Councillors feedback on agreement and there will be a 

decision on whether to proceed to consultation 

• Autumn/Winter 2022 - Formal public consultation on the proposals

• early 2023 - Consultation results and analysis submitted to government 

• Summer 2023 - A parliamentary order is laid to form a mayoral 

combined authority for York and North Yorkshire 

• estimated Autumn 23 - Establish the combined authority 

• estimated May 24 - Mayoral elections 

These timings are subject to change 

Please sign up for our newsletter and follow us on social media for the latest 

picture. 
We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 29



OFFICIAL

What is the 
consultation?

The consultation is a chance for you to understand the details of the 

proposed devolution deal from government and have your say. We’ll be 

asking for your views about the details of the proposed deal, which as it 

stands is worth £750m for York & North Yorkshire and could result in funds 

of upwards of £95m per year to be invested by the mayoral combined 

authority. Following a review of the deal by local councillors and a collective 

agreement to proceed, the consultation would take place in Autumn/ Winter 

2022. Sign up for our newsletter and follow us on social media to find out 

how to take part. There will be a number of ways to get involved, give your 

feedback, ask questions and find out more:

Online and in-person information sessions

Fill in a survey online or return a paper copy

Send us an email or write to us or give your feedback in person

Details will be published at the time of the consultation. 

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 30



OFFICIAL

Get in
touch

If you have any questions or want to discuss anything 

included in this briefing document, please contact 

Aissa Gallie, Head of Communications and 

Organisational Development, York & North Yorkshire 

Local Enterprise Partnership

Tel: 07737547898

Aissa.Gallie@ynylep.com

Visit www.ynydevolution.com for more info.

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 31

mailto:Aissa.Gallie@ynylep.com
http://www.ynydevolution.com


OFFICIAL

Thank you

We are York & North Yorkshire

P
age 32



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: 2022/23 Quarter 1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury 
 Management Report 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Quarter 1 update at 

30 June 2022 on the progress of the capital programme 2022/23 and the treasury 
management position.  A full schedule of the capital programme 2022/23 is 
attached at Annex A, together with the relevant update on progress of each 
scheme. 

 
1.2 Capital expenditure is intrinsically linked with treasury management as the way that 

the capital programme is funded, directly effects the treasury management 
arrangements of the Council.  The majority of the Council’s capital expenditure is 
funded by grants, capital receipts, reserves and borrowing.  The use of the 
Council’s funds affects the daily treasury management cash flow position, as well as 
the requirement to investment surplus funds. 

 
2.0 Capital Programme Summary: 
 
2.1 The 2022/23 capital programme was approved by Cabinet on 8 February 2022 at 

£18,412,724.  This included roll forwards for schemes originally approved in the 
2021/22 programme which totalled £14,176,832.  At 2021/22 outturn, a further 
£2,755,992 capital expenditure was carried forward in to the new financial year 
revising the capital programme 2022/23 to £21,168,716. 

 
2.2  

Portfolio 
Original 
2022/23 

2021/22 
Carried 
Forward 

Revised 
2022/23 

  £ £ £ 

Leisure & Communities 513,250 6,896,993 7,410,243 

Environment 60,000 176,232 236,232 

Economy & Planning 1,043,110 2,291,101 3,334,211 

Finance & Commercial 258,060 103,787 361,847 

Corporate Schemes 500,000 9,326,183 9,826,183 

Total 2,374,420 18,794,296 21,168,716 

Table 1: Capital Programme 2022/23 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



2.3 At this Quarter 1 monitoring report, a net increase to the capital programme of 
£404,149 results in a total revised capital programme of £21,572,865. 

 
2.4 The net increase of £404,149 to be approved in this report is detailed in Annex B 

and is made up of:- 
 

a) increase in expenditure of £73,574 supported from reserves and borrowing; 
 

b) increase in expenditure of £483,018 funded externally; and 
 
c) decrease in expenditure of £152,443 due to scheme rolled forward to 2023/24. 

 
2.5 Table 2 below outlines the variances reported against each portfolio area. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2: Capital Programme Q1 2022/23 
 
2.6  To 30 June 2022 capital expenditure of £4,016,981 has been incurred or committed 

representing 18.62% of the revised Quarter 1 capital programme position of 
£21,572,865.  It is expected that the capital programme will come in on target at the 
end of the financial year.  

 
2.7 The proposed changes to the Capital Programme, which require approval by this 

Cabinet, are detailed for each of the four portfolio areas, the Economic 
Development Fund and Corporate Schemes at Annex B 

 
3.0 Funding the Capital Programme 
 
3.1 For 2022/23, at Quarter 1, the capital programme of £21,572,865 is being funded 

from £10,047,443 external grants/contributions, £9,480,248 external borrowing, 
£910,000 from Capital Receipts, £1,016,850 from reserves and £118,324 from 
revenue contribution. 

 
  

  Portfolio 
Current 

Approved 
Expenditure 

Revised 
Expenditure 

Q1 

Variance 
Increase/ 

(decrease) 

Expenditure 
at 30 June 

2022 

 £ £ £ £ 

Leisure and 
Communities 

7,410,243 7,640,011 229,768 2,501,857 

Environment 236,232 236,232 - 45,388 

Economy and 
Planning 

3,334,211 3,478,638 144,427 569,830 

Finance and 
Commercial 

361,847 361,847 - 30,866 

Corporate 
Schemes 

9,826,183 9,856,137 29,954 869,040 

Total 21,168,716 21,572,865 404,149 4,016,981 

Page 34



3.2  The external grant funding has increased in Quarter 1 by £483,018. This is as a 
result of a contribution from the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) of £618,024 for 
the North Northallerton infrastructure scheme, additional grant allocation of 
£177,807 for the Disabled Facilities Grant scheme, £153,316 for Northallerton 
Sports Village from CIL and S106 contributions, £130,895 CIL allocation for Thirsk 
and Sowerby Sports Village and £21,000 from the Historic England funding for 
Northallerton that has been brought forward from 2023/24. 

 
3.3  The capital receipts estimated to be received during 2022/23 are £795,000 
 
3.4  Therefore at year end in accordance with accounting practice the capital 

programme will be financed using all available in year funding prior to using 
borrowing and the Council’s capital reserves.  At Quarter 1 it is estimated that 
£115,000 of reserve funding will be used. 

 
3.5  The overall funding position continues to be closely monitored to ensure the overall 

capital programme remains affordable and sustainable over the 10 year approved 
capital plan. 
 

3.6  It should be noted that the report reflects the capital programme position as if 
approval has been agreed by Cabinet. This is detailed in the recommendations 
below. 

 
4.0 Treasury Management Position 2022/23: 
 
4.1 The Treasury Management review at Quarter 1 2022/23 is attached at Annex C and 

provides Members with an update on the: 
 

(a) treasury management position 
(b) economy and interest rates 
(c) investment policy 
(d) investment performance 
(e) borrowing position 
(f) compliance with prudential and treasury indicators 

 
4.2  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/23 which details 

the Council’s approach to treasury management was approved by this Council on 
22 February 2022.  

 
4.3  The investment position at Quarter 1, 30 June 2022 was £11,260,000 with an 

average interest rate return of 0.63% for the year to date.  This is all invested in 
short term commodities for liquidity purposes due to the numerous capital projects 
that are currently ongoing within the Council.  £3,760,000 is invested in Money 
Market Funds which has instant access and the remaining balance of £7,500,000 is 
placed in instant call accounts with Lloyds Bank and Santander.  The balance has 
been divided into these commodities so that the best yield is obtained whilst 
ensuring the money is available by the Council when required.   

 
  

Page 35



4.4 The current climate has seen investment interest rates rise due to the increase of 
the Bank of England Base Rate.  This has resulted in an increase of interest 
received and the Quarter 1 Budget Monitoring report estimates an additional 
£80,000 of interest during 2022/23 increasing the Investment Interest Budget to 
£87,500. 

 
4.5  The total borrowing by the Council at the end of Quarter 1 was £36,500,000.  

£26,500,000 is with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) taken in previous 
financial years over six loans with varying maturity dates. £10,000,000 has been 
borrowed during Quarter 1 from North Yorkshire County Council.  This was taken 
short term on 20 April 2022 and is due to be repaid on 1 April 2023.  The borrowing 
requirement for the rest of 2022/23 will be closely monitored in line with the 
Council’s capital programme and any additional borrowing will be reported if the 
need arises.  It is estimated that there will be a saving of £200,000 relating to 
borrowing costs that have been reported in the Quarter 1 Revenue Monitoring 
report. 

 
4.6  At Quarter 1 the Council had given a total of £33,600,000 of loans to a Local 

Housing Association.  This has been made up of eight individual loans with varying 
maturity dates and fulfils the agreement taken out with the Housing Association. 

 
4.7  The interest received from the loans to the local Housing Association is not included 

in this section of the report because the loan is classed as capital expenditure under 
economic development to support local businesses.  However, the interest earned 
in the first quarter from the £33,600,000 loaned to the Local Housing association is 
£357,440 and is on target for the annual budget of £1,429,760. 

 
4.8 The Council has operated within the treasury and prudential indicators and the 

approved limits were not breached during the Quarter 1 in 2022/23. 
 
5.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
5.1 All schemes approved as part of the capital programme have been evaluated 

against key corporate priorities.  Schemes are only undertaken and approved by 
Cabinet in accordance with the Council Plan and supporting project initiation 
documentation. 

 
5.2  Treasury Management supports all aspects of the Council’s priorities as the income 

earned on investments or increased costs on interest paid on borrowing contributes 
to the Council’s funding position which supports Council services. 

 
6.0 Risk Assessment: 
 
6.1 There are no risks associated with approving this report. However, the risks 

associated with not receiving regular monitoring reports are potentially more 
serious. 

 
7.0 Financial Implications: 
 
7.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 

Page 36



8.0 Legal Implications: 
 
8.1 Treasury Management activities and the Capital programme conform to the Local 

Government Act 2003 and the Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 

 
9.0  Equality/Diversity Issues: 
 
9.1  The capital programme seeks to address key equality issues that affect the Council 

and the public. The main scheme that specifically addressed equalities in the first 
quarter of 2022/23 is the Disabled Facilities Grant scheme. 

 
10.0  Recommendations: 
 
10.1  That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:- 
 

(1) the net increase of £404,149 in the capital programme to £21,572,865 and all 
expenditure movements as detailed in Annex B and also in the capital 
programme attached at Annex A of the report; 
 

(2) the increase of capital expenditure of £556,592 funded as follows: £483,018 
is from external grants/contributions and £73,574 from borrowing; and 

 
(3) the funding allocation to the capital programme as detailed in paragraph 3.1 

and 3.2 of the report. 
 

 
 
Saskia Calton 
Corporate Finance Manager (Deputy S151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers: None 
  
Author ref: SC 
 
Contact: Saskia Calton 
 Corporate Finance Manager 
 Direct Line No 01609 767226 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme Schemes 2022/23 Annex A

Councillor / Officer Capital Scheme Budget 2022/23 2021/22 B/Fwd Total 2022/23 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2022/23 Third Party Cont
Third Party Cont                 

Qtr 1

Cost to the Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 30th 

June 2022 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £  £ £

Portfolio                

Leisure
Leisure & Communities

BLC - Improvement Project -                           65,195                      65,195 65,195 65,195 -                           8,662                       65,195 Scheme is in progress.

BLC-Air Handling Unit -                           62,500                      62,500 62,500 62,500                      62,500 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

BLC - Leisure improvement feasibiltiy study for 3g pitch -                           3,600                       3,600 3,600 3,600                       3,600                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

SLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchangers & Boiler Shunt Pump -                           17,400                      17,400 17,400 17,400                      17,400 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

SLC-Flatroof isolated replacement -                           13,750                      13,750 13,750 13,750                      13,750 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

SLC- Glazed roof and entrance lobby -                           37,500                      37,500 37,500 37,500                      37,500 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

 SLC- Dry side changing areas and wetside shower areas -                           150,000                    150,000                    150,000 150,000                    150,000 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC-AHU and Ductwork replacement -                           257,250                    257,250                    257,250 257,250                    257,250 Scheme has been initiated and procurement is in progress.

NLC- Roof overlay and rainwater goods improvements -                           357,208                    357,208                    357,208 357,208                    357,208
Scheme is currently being investigated to ensure that the work is 

required in 2022/23.

NLC-Glazed roof replacement -                           81,250                      81,250                      81,250 81,250                      81,250 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC-Steelwork repairs and redecoration -                           17,500                      17,500                      17,500 17,500                      17,500 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC-Sports hall floor replacement -                           156,750                    156,750                    156,750 156,750                    156,750
Scheme is currently on hold due linkage to Roof Replacement 

scheme.

NLC-Pressurisation unit -                           4,210                       4,210                       4,210 4,210                       4,210 Scheme is in progress.

NLC-Domestic hot water tank -                           22,500                      22,500                      22,500 22,500                      22,500 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchanger -                           20,000                      20,000                      20,000 20,000                      20,000 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC - Heating Coils 12,500                      -                           12,500                      12,500 12,500                      12,500 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC - Sports Hall Control Panel 18,750                      -                           18,750                      18,750 18,750                      18,750 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

NLC - Staircases to Flume & Studio Repairs -                           7,351                       7,351                       7,351 7,351                       7,351 Scheme is in progress.

NLC - Cold Water Storage Tank -                           8,653                       8,653                       8,653 8,653                       8,653 Scheme is in progress.

T&SLC - Improvement Project -                           155,614 155,614                    155,614 155,614 155,614 Scheme completed and waiting for final invoice.

P
age 39



Capital Programme Schemes 2022/23 Annex A

Councillor / Officer Capital Scheme Budget 2022/23 2021/22 B/Fwd Total 2022/23 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2022/23 Third Party Cont
Third Party Cont                 

Qtr 1

Cost to the Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 30th 

June 2022 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

T&SLC All Weather Pitch - Sports Pavilion refurbishment -                           62,500                      62,500                      (62,500) -                           -                           -                           Request of scheme to be moved to T&SLC - Replace 3G Pitch

T&SLC - Replace 3G Pitch 187,500                    30,513                      218,013                    62,500 280,513 280,513                    7,271                       280,513
Request of scheme to be moved from T&SLC All Weather Pitch - 

Sports Pavilion refurbishment

All Leisure Centres - Decarbonisation Fund -                           2,769,045                 2,769,045                 2,769,045 2,769,045                 -                           2,237,587                 2,769,045 Scheme is progressing with final invoices to be received 

Thirsk & Sowerby Sports Village -                           1,010,676 1,010,676                 130,895 1,141,571 660,676                    130,895 350,000                    202,685                    1,141,571
Scheme is progressing with an additional £130,895 of Cil requested to 

complete first part of the scheme.

Northallerton Sports Village -                           1,222,074 1,222,074                 98,873 1,320,947                 1,222,074 98,873 -                           3,019                       1,320,947                 

Request of £210,967 from additional S106 funding of £17,942 and 

£193,025 from CIL funding. In addition, a reduction of £57,651 is due 

to unsuccessful bid from British cycling. Of the £193,025 CIL funding, 

£54,443 is requested to be transferred to 2023/24

Portfolio Governance

Public lighting replacement 36,000                      (13,447) 22,553 22,553 22,553                      22,553                      22,553                      Scheme is in progress.

Public Lighting LED Upgrade -                           40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000                      8,131                       40,000                      Scheme is in progress.

CCTV Scheme -                           5,525                       5,525                       5,525 5,525                       -                           5,525                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Car Park Reinstatments -                           95,467 95,467 95,467 95,467                      -                           95,467                      Scheme is progressing since spend is planned.

Car Park Improvement Scheme -                           80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000                      11,949                      80,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Adoptions - Electric Bollards - Thirsk & Northallerton -                           24,659 24,659 24,659 24,659                      24,659                      Scheme is in progress.

Improve structural support and resurface riverside footpath -

Millgate Thirsk
-                           22,000                      22,000                      22,000 22,000                      22,000 Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Civic Centre - Electrical Switch Gear 65,000                      -                           65,000 65,000 65,000                      65,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Civic Centre - Public Lighting LED Upgrade 20,000                      -                           20,000 20,000 20,000                      20,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Forum Air Handling Unit -                           43,750                      43,750 43,750 43,750                      43,750                      Scheme is in progress since tender has been issued early August.

Forum - Car Park & Access Rd Resurfacing 49,500                      -                           49,500 49,500 49,500                      49,500                      Scheme is in progress.

Forum - Glazing Refurbishment Exterior 30,000                      -                           30,000 30,000 30,000                      30,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

WOJH - Roof Replacement 60,000                      -                           60,000 60,000 60,000                      60,000                      Scheme is in progress since planning application has been submitted.

WOJH - Structural Timber 2,000                       -                           2,000 2,000 2,000                       2,000                       Scheme is in progress since planning application has been submitted.

WOJH - Brickwork 10,000                      -                           10,000 10,000 10,000                      10,000                      Scheme is in progress since planning application has been submitted.

Thirk Market place -replace and repoint Yorkstone paving areas -                           66,000                      66,000 66,000 66,000                      66,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Thirsk Market Place - Resurface Cobbled Areas 22,000                      -                           22,000 22,000 22,000                      22,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

P
age 40



Capital Programme Schemes 2022/23 Annex A

Councillor / Officer Capital Scheme Budget 2022/23 2021/22 B/Fwd Total 2022/23 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2022/23 Third Party Cont
Third Party Cont                 

Qtr 1

Cost to the Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 30th 

June 2022 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

Total Scheme Value Leisure & Communities 513,250                    6,896,993                 7,410,243                 229,768                    7,640,011                 4,651,795                 294,963                    2,693,253                 2,501,857                 7,640,011                 

Portfolio 

Environmental Health, 

Waste and Recycling

Environment

 Purchase of bins and boxes for refuse and recycling 60,000                      -                           60,000                      60,000 10,000 50,000 44,174                      60,000                      
Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2 due to increase in oil prices 

that are increases in the price of bins.

Northallerton Depot Improvement Scheme -                           38,312                      38,312                      38,312 38,312 1,214                       38,312                      Scheme is in progress.

WASS - Digital Depot System -                           3,439                       3,439                       3,439 3,439 3,439                       Scheme is in progress.

Northallerton Depot Condition Management -                           109,808                    109,808                    109,808 109,808 109,808                    Scheme is in progress.

Bedale Garage Asbestos Scheme -                           20,000                      20,000                      20,000 20,000                      20,000                      Scheme is in progress since planning application has been submitted.

Energy Efficency Project -                           4,673                       4,673                       4,673 4,673 -                           4,673                       Scheme is in progress.

Total Scheme Value Environment 60,000                      176,232                    236,232                    -                           236,232                    14,673                      -                           221,559                    45,388                      236,232                    

Portfolio Economic 

Development & 

Finance

Economy & Planning

Workspaces - Electrical Distribution Replacement -                           14,000                      14,000 14,000 14,000                      14,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Springboard- Structural steel, lourves and actuators -                           244,992                    244,992 23,500 268,492 268,492                    85,056                      268,492                    Request of £23,500 due to contract variation requirements.

Bedale Craft Yard -External and internal redecoration -                           5,000                       5,000 5,000 5,000                       5,000                       Scheme is progressing.

Bedale Craft Yard- Lighting internal and external replacement -                           7,958                       7,958                       7,958                       7,958                       7,958                       Scheme is progressing.

Bedale Craft Yard - Gas Unit & Water Heater 33,000                      33,000 33,000                      33,000                      33,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Binks Close- Water heaters replacement -                           1,224                       1,224                       1,224 1,224                       1,224                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Binks Close - Redecoration 3,200                       3,200 3,200                       3,200                       3,200                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Binks Close- Internal lighting replacement -                           8,000                       8,000                       8,000 8,000                       8,000                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Lumley Close- Water heater replacement -                           1,800                       1,800                       1,800 1,800                       1,800                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Lumley Close- External works fencing and landscaping -                           4,000                       4,000 4,000 4,000                       4,000                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Lumley Close - Redecoration 3,000                       3,000 3,000                       3,000                       3,000                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Wainstones Court -Water boilers replacement (kitchen) -                           5,600                       5,600 5,600 5,600                       5,600                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Wainstones Court -guttering and roof works 15,400                      15,400                      15,400                      15,400                      15,400                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

P
age 41



Capital Programme Schemes 2022/23 Annex A

Councillor / Officer Capital Scheme Budget 2022/23 2021/22 B/Fwd Total 2022/23 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2022/23 Third Party Cont
Third Party Cont                 

Qtr 1

Cost to the Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 30th 

June 2022 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

Wainstones Court - Internal Lighting Replacement 6,000                       6,000 6,000                       6,000                       6,000                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Wainstones Court - Roof & Gutter Integral Unit Replacement 98,000                      98,000 (98,000) -                           -                           -                           Request of rolled forward of £98,000 to 2023/24

Wainstones Court - Redecoration 2,800                       2,800 2,800                       2,800                       2,800                       Scheme is in progress.

Evolution - Heating System 200,000                    (1,131) 198,869 198,869                    198,869                    198,869                    Scheme is in progress.

Market Towns Investment Plans - Bedale 50,000                      50,000 50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Market Towns Investment Plans - Easingwold 50,000                      50,000 50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Market Towns Investment Plans - Northallerton 50,000                      50,000 50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Market Towns Investment Plans - Stokesley 50,000                      50,000 50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Market Towns Investment Plans - Thirsk 50,000                      50,000 50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      Scheme is in progress.

Heritage Action Zone schemes -                           140,361                    140,361 3,360                       143,721 78,012 (23,340) 89,049 143,721                    Request of £3,360 for additional planned spend.

Heritage Action Zone - Cultural Programme -                           48,490                      48,490 (36,240) 12,250 37,250 (36,240) 11,240                      12,250                      

Request of roll back of £21,000 from 2023/24 for the Art Trail 

Sculpture scheme and £15,240 which is to be transferred to the Art 

Trail project.

Art Trail Sculpture -                           -                           -                           74,000                      74,000 -                           36,240 37,760                      74,000                      

Request of transfer of £36,240 from the Heritage Action Zone project 

along with a request of additional spend of £37,760 for the Art Trail 

sculpture scheme.

Town square enhancement scheme -                           770,000                    770,000 770,000 770,000 -                           439,237                    770,000                    Scheme is in progress.

Town centre living -                           120,000                    120,000 120,000 120,000 -                           120,000                    Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Northallerton Complementary Schemes -                           262,137                    262,137 262,137 262,137                    262,137                    Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Northallerton Infrastructure Scheme -                           595,754                    595,754 595,754 595,754 -                           595,754                    Retention of scheme awaiting final invoice.

P
age 42



Capital Programme Schemes 2022/23 Annex A

Councillor / Officer Capital Scheme Budget 2022/23 2021/22 B/Fwd Total 2022/23 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2022/23 Third Party Cont
Third Party Cont                 

Qtr 1

Cost to the Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 30th 

June 2022 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

Portfolio Holder for 

Planning

Disabled Facilities Grant 431,710                    62,916                      494,626 177,807 672,433 429,514 177,807 65,112                      45,538                      672,433                    Request of £177,807 of ring-fenced grant funding.

Total Scheme Value Economy & Planning 1,043,110                 2,291,101                 3,334,211                 144,427                    3,478,638                 2,030,530                 154,467                    1,293,641                 569,830                    3,478,638                 

Portfolio Governance Finance & Commercial

ICT Improvements  194,060                    7,913                       201,973 201,973 201,973                    8,234                       201,973                    Scheme is in progress.

IDOX Software Upgrade -                           8,525                       8,525 8,525 8,525                       8,525                       Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Portfolio           

Leisure 

Leisure Centre -Update activity management system -                           1,248                       1,248 1,248 1,248                       1,248                       Scheme is in progress.

Leisure Centre -Update wi-fi -                           15,135                      15,135 15,135 15,135                      15,135                      Scheme is in progress.

Leisure Centre Access Points 64,000                      64,000 64,000 64,000                      64,000                      Scheme is being assessed at Quarter 2.

Portfolio Economic 

Development & 

Finance

ICT - Information@work upgrade -                           6,701                       6,701 6,701 6,701                       2,132                       6,701                       Scheme is in progress.

ICT -Civica Estore and Icon Upgrade V17.3/v18 -                           35,765                      35,765 35,765 35,765                      20,500                      35,765                      Scheme is in progress.

ICT - Civica cash receipting upgrade to Hosted -                           28,500                      28,500                      28,500 28,500                      28,500                      Scheme is in progress.

Total Scheme Value Finance & Commercial 258,060                    103,787                    361,847                    -                           361,847                    -                           -                           361,847                    30,866                      361,847                    

Portfolio Economic 

Development & 

Finance

Corporate Schemes

Treadmills Phase 1 -                           64,532 64,532 29,954                      94,486                      -                           94,486                      64,532                      94,486                      Request of £29,954 to complete fit-our contract obligation.

Treadmills Phase 2 including eCampus -                           8,784,413 8,784,413 (7,639,413) 1,145,000                 2,901,015                 (2,901,015) 1,145,000                 336,973                    1,145,000                 
Scheme in progress and split of spend of £7,639,413 between the 

Treadmills Phase 2 and 3 projects requested.

Treadmills Phase 3 500,000                    500,000 7,639,413                 8,139,413                 -                           2,901,015 5,238,398                 467,535                    8,139,413                 
Scheme in progress and split of spend of £7,639,413 between the 

Treadmills Phase 2 and 3 projects requested.

Crematorium -                           477,238                    477,238 -                           477,238                    -                           477,238                    -                           477,238                    Scheme is in progress.

Total Scheme Value Corporate Schemes 500,000                    9,326,183                 9,826,183                 29,954                      9,856,137                 2,901,015                 -                           6,955,122                 869,040                    9,856,137                 

Total Capital Programme 2022/23 2,374,420 18,794,296 21,168,716 404,149 21,572,865 9,598,013 449,430 11,525,422 4,016,981                 21,572,865

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex B  
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME:  
 
1.1  The proposed changes to the capital programme, detailed for each of the portfolio 

areas are listed below:  
 
1.2  Leisure and Communities – 4 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1:  
 

(a) T&SLC All Weather Pitch - Sports Pavilion refurbishment - Request to move 
£62,500 to the T&SLC - Replace 3G Pitch scheme. 
 

(b) T&SLC All Weather Pitch - Sports Pavilion refurbishment - Request to move 
£62,500 from the T&SLC All Weather Pitch - Sports Pavilion refurbishment 
scheme. 
 

(c) Thirsk & Sowerby Sports Village - Scheme is progressing with an additional 
£130,895 of CIL funding requested to complete first part of the scheme. 

 
(d) Northallerton Sports Village - Request of £210,967 from additional S106 funding of 

£17,942 and £193,025 from CIL funding. In addition, a reduction of £57,651 is due 
to unsuccessful bid from British cycling. Of the £193,025 CIL funding, £54,443 is 
requested to be transferred to 2023/24 

 
1.3  Economy and Planning – 6 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 3:  
 

a) Springboard- Structural steel, lourves and actuators - Request of £23,500 
due to contract variation requirements. 
 

b) Wainstones Court - Roof & Gutter Integral Unit Replacement - Request of 
rolled forward of £98,000 to 2023/24 
 

c) Heritage Action Zone schemes - Request of £3,360 for additional planned 
spend. 
 

d) Heritage Action Zone - Cultural Programme - Request of roll back of £21,000 
from 2023/24 for the Art Trail Sculpture scheme and £15,240 which is to be 
transferred to the Art Trail Sculpture project. 
 

e) Art Trail Sculpture project - Request of transfer of £36,240 from the Heritage 
Action Zone project along with a request of additional spend of £37,760 for 
the Art Trail sculpture scheme totalling £74,000. 
 

f) Disabled Facilities Grant - Request of £177,807 of ring-fenced grant funding. 
 

 
1.4 Corporate Schemes - 3 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1: 
 
 

a) Treadmills Phase 1 - Request of £29,954 to complete fit-our contract obligation. 
 

Page 45



b) Treadmills Phase 2 - Scheme in progress and split of spend of £7,639,413 
between the Treadmills Phase 2 and 3 projects requested. 
 

c) Treadmills Phase 3 - Scheme in progress and split of spend of £7,639,413 
between the Treadmills Phase 2 and 3 projects requested. 
 

1.5 Capital schemes are monitored on a monthly basis and reported to Cabinet 
quarterly, ensuring that the majority of schemes are held within budget or reported 
to Council at the earliest opportunity. 

  
1.6  New Schemes added to the capital programme all have supporting Project Initiation 

Documentation to ensure projects are affordable, sustainable and prudent. 

Page 46



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: 2022/23 Q1 Revenue Monitoring 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the revenue budget position of 

the Council and the reserve funds at the end of June 2022. 
 
1.2 The Quarter 1 monitoring for the Capital Programme and Treasury Management 

position is contained in a separate report on this Cabinet agenda.   
 
2.0 Revenue Budget 
 
2.1 The Council set its budget on 8 February 2022 for 2022/23 at £11,366,370 in line 

with the approved Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25. 
 
2.2 The breakdown of the budget in accordance with the Council themes when the 

budget was approved was as follows: 
 
              £ 
 
  Economy & Planning       924,010 
  Environment      3,931,490 
  Finance & Commercial    3,937,070 
  Law & Governance     1,272,570  
  Leisure & Communities    1,171,900  
  Drainage Board Levies       129,330 
  Net Revenue Expenditure 11,366,370 
 
3.0 Budget Position to June 2022: 
 
3.1 Since the budget for 2022/23 was set in February 2022, adjustments to the budget 

outlook have occurred.  The table below details the changes that have been 
approved through separate reports to Cabinet and also those that have been 
identified at Quarter 1 budget monitoring. 

  

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



 2022/23 

 £ 

Budget Outlook approved at 8 February 2022 11,366,370 

Changes to Budget Outlook:  

Corporate Savings (389,310) 

Budgeted Salary Savings Required 115,000 

Net Corporate Savings (274,310) 

Departmental Movements 84,310 

Transfer to Local Government Reorganisation Reserve 200,000 

Transfer from Economic Development Fund 10,000 

Budget after Quarter 1 monitoring 11,366,370 

Financial Strategy 8 February 2022 11,366,370 

Quarter 1 Surplus / (Shortfall) - 

 
         Table 1: Quarter 1 Budget 
 
3.2 In 2022/23 the budget started at £11,366,370 as stated in the Financial Strategy 

and illustrated in the table above.  The 2022/23 budget includes £115,000 of salary 
savings through vacancies and the purchase of additional leave, during Quarter 1, 
£394,730 of Salary savings have been identified which can be used to offset the 
budgeted target.  The total savings recognised at Quarter 1 is £200,000.  It is 
recommended that the budget remains at £11,366,370 and that at Quarter 1 
Cabinet approves that the £200,000 underspend is transferred to the Local 
Government Reorganisation Reserve to cover additional costs with the transition. 

 
3.3 There are three main areas of change to the 2022/23 budget at Quarter 1 totalling 

£200,000 savings. 
 

(a) Corporate cost savings of £274,310 
(b) Departmental overspends of £84,310 
(c) Departmental movements which have Nil effect on the budget. 

 
3.4 The Corporate Cost movements in the budget are: 
  

(i) A corporate review of salary budgets has resulted in a saving of £778,940 
due to various vacancies including the Director of Finance and positions in  
Planning Policy, Operational Services, Human Resources and Design and 
Maintenance due to not being able to recruit because of Local Government 
Reorganisation.  The savings identified are required to fund £384,210 of 
additional expenditure to enable the services to function including £93,000 
for the use of consultants to assist with the Local Plan Review and to provide 
cover in Design and Maintenance.  Agency staff are also being used to fill 
vacancies in Human Resources, Business Support and Homelessness.  The 
salary savings identified will offset the initial £115,000 budgeted salary 
savings resulting in a Corporate Salary Saving of £279,730. 

 
(ii) The annual Drainage Board Levies payable to the three Drainage Boards is 

£5,420 more than budgeted. 
 
3.5 Departmental movements created additional expenditure of £84,310. 

Page 48



 
(i) Economy and Planning – A total overspend of £162,890 relates to numerous 

areas.  Additional legal work is required relating to the Linton-on-Ouse 
Asylum Reception currently estimated to be £74,000 however this may 
increase if it progresses to Phase II.  Increased Development Management 
enforcement will cost an additional £30,000.  The total workspace rental and 
refreshments is estimated to be £68,890 below the original budget.  This is 
due to a Company vacating a number of Units at Leeming Bar Food 
Enterprise Centre at a cost of £90,720, this is offset by increased occupancy 
and reduced refreshment expenditure at Springboard, Evolution, Wainstones 
Court and Lumley Close totalling £21,830.  The Land Charges section have 
entered into a Service Level Agreement with Richmondshire District Council 
that will create additional income of £10,000.  An additional £10,000 will be 
allocated from the Economic Development Reserve to facilitate investment in 
a tourism initiative. 

 
(ii) Environment – A total overspend of £1,500 relates to numerous areas.  The 

effects of the increase of fuel prices to the Waste and Street Scene services 
is estimated to be an additional £180,000 of expenditure.  The cost of 
replacing tyres on Waste and Street scene’s vehicles has also risen and is 
estimated to cost a further £35,000. An additional £12,000 budget is required 
to cover the increased cost of waste bin liners and sacks for Waste and 
Street Scene. The increased fluctuating prices paid for recycling tonnage 
results in an underspend of £250,000.  Additional work within the 
Environmental Health section has resulted in agency staff being required, 
this has been agreed by Management Team to be funded by the Local 
Government Reorganisation Reserve and £24,500 from underspends in the 
year.   

 
(iii) Finance & Commercial – A total underspend of £271,690 relates to the 

Treasury function of the Council.  The rise in interest rates has increased the 
Investment Income received by an estimated £80,000.  The Council’s 
borrowing needs have reduced from when the budget was set resulting with 
an estimated saving of £200,000.  Additional Bank Charges of £8,310 are 
being incurred in the year due to the Council having increased payments 
including the Council Tax Rebate where entitled residents were paid £150 to 
help with energy costs. 

 
(iv) Law and Governance – A total over spend of £18,790 relates to a number of 

areas.  On 8 February 2022 Cabinet approved a waiver of the licence fee for 
the 2022 May Fair resulting in £15,200 loss of income.  The legal section 
require additional locum cover at a cost of £23,590.  There is a reduced 
requirement for Corporate Training creating an underspend of £20,000. 

 
(v) Leisure and Communities – A total overspend of £162,820 relates to 

numerous areas.  The de-carbonisation works at the leisure centres have 
resulted in some closures at the various leisure centres.  Stokesley Leisure 
had one month closure of the full site and a further two weeks of the 
swimming pool resulting in a loss of income of £64,800.  Bedale Leisure 
Centre’s pool was closed for a week resulting with a £2,230 loss of income.  

Page 49



The cost of supporting the safe passage of part of the Tour of Britain cycling 
event is estimated to cost £30,000.  An increase in the budget of £50,000 for 
a contribution towards the Imaginosity arts project funded by underspends in 
the year was approved at Cabinet on 5 July 2022. An additional £9,790 is 
required to deliver an effective enforcement regime in relation to Public 
Space Protection Orders and was approved at Cabinet on 11 January 2022.  
There is also a budget requirement of £6,000 for additional car parking disks 
at Stokesley High Street Car Park. 

 
3.6 Departmental budget movements that have nil on the overall budget but exceed 

£20,000, as detailed in the Council’s Financial Regulations require Cabinet approval 
as follows: 

 
(i) The Heritage Hub located at 90 High Street, Northallerton is to extend the 

pop up exhibition for a further six months at a cost of £36,350 which is to be 
funded by reserves. 
 

(ii) Increased staffing provisions at C4Di and the Campus building at Treadmills 
are required at an annual cost of £10,410 which will be funded by salary 
savings with Business and Economy. 

 
(iii) The allocation of £225,660 of the Local Government Reorganisation Reserve 

require budgets to be established.  £90,000 is to assist with Environmental 
Health staffing costs, £36,000 is to fund a temporary post in Development 
Management, £70,000 is to appoint agency and £10,000 for additional 
overtime in Development Management. £10,000 is required for the 
undertaking of Leisure Quest assessments of leisure centres. £9,660 is 
required to fund additional work within Waste and Street Scene due to Local 
Government Reorganisation. 

 
(iv) Increased income of £30,000 has been received as part of the Treadmills 

agreement which is to be transferred to fund capital. 
 
4.0 CIL Reserve 
 
4.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) balances at 30 June 2022 is £5,295,895.  

The Council is committed to using this reserve for priority schemes and to distribute 
to parishes.  The movements in 2022/23 can be seen in the table below: 

 

 Amount (£) 

2022/23 Opening Balance 4,493,124 

Add in-year income 890,484 

Less in-year payments to parishes (87,713) 

Closing Balance Quarter 1 5,295,895 

 
5.0 Other Matters - Grants 
 
5.1 The following grants and contributions have been allocated to the Council since the 

budget was approved in February 2022. 
  

Page 50



 

Description Amount (£) 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities:  

Domestic Abuse Act – New Burdens 4,623 

Domestic Abuse – Safe Accommodation Support 32,172 

Homelessness Support Grant 125,406 

Department for Works and Pensions:  

Verifying Earnings & Pensions 6,000 

Support Fraud Investigations 281 

Housing Benefit Maintenance on Universal Credit Cases 780 

Natural Migration to Universal Credit 653 

Total 169,915 

 
6.0 Sensitivity Analysis 
 
6.1 Further to the recommendations for changes to the budget in this Quarter 1 

monitoring report, this report also highlights where there are areas of budget 
uncertainty.  This can give Members early warning of possible issues in the future.  
All areas will continue to be closely monitored and an update provided for Quarter 2.  
Annex ‘A’ attached details the sensitivity analysis. 

 
7.0 Waiver of Procurement Rules 
 
7.1 It is the Council’s policy to obtain competitive quotations or tenders for the purchase 

of products, work that is undertaken or for services to be provided.  However, a 
waiver may be agreed by Cabinet (or the Chief Executive in an emergency) if they 
are satisfied, after considering a written report that the waiver is justified. 

 
7.2 The Chief Executive has approved the following waiver, for which Single Quote / 

Tender Waiver form has been completed as the annual cost of the contract is 
£20,000.  The Contract with JLL Cleaning Ltd is to clean and seal the natural stone 
that has recently been laid as part of the Northallerton Town Square and High 
Street Improvement Scheme.  The cleaning and sealing was not part of the original 
contract and as this is a specialised task advice from BBS who supplied the stone 
has been taken and they have recommended JLL Cleaning Ltd as they have a 
proven track record and there are very few other companies that could carry out the 
specialist cleaning and sealing work on a project of this size.   

 
8.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
8.1 The monitoring of the financial budget throughout the year and reporting the 

financial year end position assists in ensuring the Council’s service requirements 
are met and contributes to the achievement of the priorities set out in the Council 
Plan. 

 
9.0 Risk Assessment 
 
9.1 There are no major risks associated directly with this report.  However, a list of 

potential pressures on the budget is shown in Annex A. 
 

Page 51



10.0 Financial Implications 
 
10.1 The financial implications are dealt within the body of the report. 
 
11.0 Legal Implications 
 
11.1 It is a legal requirement under s25 of the Local Government Act 2003 to set a 

balanced budget and monitor the financial position throughout the year. 
 
12.0 Equality and Diversity Issues 
 
12.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
13.0 Recommendations:  
 
13.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that the budget remains at 

£11,366,370 as detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the report for 2022/23. 
 
13.2 That Cabinet approves:- 
 

(i) that £200,000 of the Quarter 1 underspend is transferred to the Local 
Government Reorganisation Reserve as detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the 
report; and 

 
(ii) the departmental budget movements as detailed within paragraph 3.6 of the 

report. 
 
 
Saskia Calton 
Corporate Finance Manager (Deputy S151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: SC 
 
Contact: Saskia Calton 
  Corporate Finance Manager (Deputy S151 Officer) 
  01609 767226 
  

Page 52



Annex A 
 

Budget 2022/23 Quarter 1 Sensitivity Analysis – potential savings / costs 
 

Council Directorates Area of Sensitivity Commentary 
 

Economy & Planning Planning Fees This will be closely monitored due to 
the estimated income being so high. 

 Workspace 
Management Income 

This will continue to be closely 
monitored throughout the year as new 
tenants move into units. 

 
Environment 

Bed and Breakfast 
Accommodation 

Accommodation costs will be 
monitored closely as costs are rising 
due to Hambleton not having any 
appropriate accommodation so 
therefore have to use other areas. 

Finance & Commercial Housing Benefit 
Payments 

Whilst any increase in Housing Benefit 
payments will be partly offset by 
subsidy, the budget is so large that a 
small increase in percentage terms can 
lead to a large amount in monetary 
terms. 

Leisure & 
Communities 

Car Park Income This will be monitored and reported at 
Quarter 2 when any effects on the 
usage of the car parks can be 
analysed. 

 Market Income This will be monitored as the usage at 
Northallerton is down due to the impact 
of the High Street Improvement 
Scheme, ways of promoting the market 
is currently being looked into. 

 All Leisure Centre 
Income 

The Leisure Centres are experiencing 
reduced income compared to their 
targets due to reduced usage after the 
effects of COVID-19, the Cost-of-Living 
crisis and new competition in the area.  
This will be monitored and data 
analysed to report at Quarter 2. 

Corporate Legal Costs Potential legal costs relating to Linton-
on-Ouse Asylum Reception if 
progresses to Phase II. 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: Hackney Carriage Table of Fares 
 
Portfolio Holder: Governance  
 Councillor Mrs I Sanderson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 This report asks Cabinet to consider the four objections to the proposed Hackney 

Carriage Table of Fares.     
 

1.2 On 5 July 2022 Cabinet, on the recommendations of the Licensing Committee, 
approved variations to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares (minute CA.14 refers).  
A copy of the Table of Fares is attached to this report marked ‘Annex A’.     The 
variation in fares was recommended in recognition of the recent sharp increases in 
fuel prices.  
 

1.3 Following approval by Cabinet the Council was required by relevant legislation to 
advertise its Table of Fares for a defined period, and to give time for interested 
parties to lodge objections.  Any objections received would need to be considered 
by Cabinet before any variations to fares could be applied.  Having considered the 
objections, Cabinet could decide to give final approval to the varied Table of Fares, 
or to modify the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares.   
 

1.4 On 15 July 2022, the proposed variation to the Table of Fares was circulated for 
comment to 146 individuals licensed as either hackney carriage drivers or 
proprietors with Hambleton District Council. 
 

1.5 On 22 July 2022, the proposed variation to the Table of Fares was published in the 
Darlington and Stockton Times, and displayed in the Council offices, in order to 
seek views from the general public. 
 

1.6 Objections were received from 4 of the 146 members of the hackney carriage trade. 
No objections were received from any other member of the public. All four 
objections discouraged an increase to £5 for the first mile and three of those 
objections suggest an increase to the rolling mile to raise the cost of longer 
journeys. The objections are attached to this report at ‘Annex B’. 
 

1.7 Prior to making its recommendation to Cabinet, the Licensing Committee 
considered several requests from the hackney carriage trade, including suggestions 
(as here) relating to the first mile and longer rolling mile rates. The Licensing 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



Committee also considered the potential impact of increasing the cost of longer 
journeys beyond the prices available in some neighbouring districts.  In addition, the 
Licensing Committee considered information relating to fuel prices and comparison 
data of the fares charged throughout North Yorkshire.  The comparison data 
considered by the Licensing Committee showed that Hambleton’s existing daytime 
rates for the first mile were below the average cost in the local area. However, the 
running mile rate for longer journeys of £2 per mile was among the highest in the 
area. This meant that short journeys were relatively cheap in Hambleton, but longer 
journeys were already among the most expensive. 

 
1.8 The Licensing Committee acknowledged the need to ensure that members of the 

public were not discouraged from using taxis in Hambleton, and it considered the 
likelihood of customers being encouraged to use unlicensed vehicles and/or 
vehicles from neighbouring districts with cheaper fares. On the basis that the 
charges for longer journeys in Hambleton were already relatively high, the Licensing 
Committee recommended an increase on the first mile rate (which was generally 
lower than that charged elsewhere) but not on the rolling mile rate. This led to the 
recommendations on fares which the Cabinet approved at its meeting on 
5 July 2022. 
 

1.9 Cabinet is required to consider the objections before reaching a final decision on 
fares.  It is apparent that the issues raised in the four objections were considered by 
the Licensing Committee, which heard evidence on the matter, and which did not 
dissuade it from recommending an increase to the rate for the first mile, although it 
did for longer journeys.     
 

1.10 Cabinet when considering the objections could take the view that the variation to the 
Table of Fares was made following detailed consideration of the issues now raised 
by objectors, and that the Cabinet in the circumstances is satisfied that the Hackney 
Carriage Table of Fares should be applied without modification.  Alternatively, and 
as stated above, the Cabinet could modify the Table of Fares.               

 
1.11 When producing a Table of Fares the Council needs to find a balance between 

ensuring that drivers in Hambleton are fairly rewarded for their work and ensuring 
that members of the public are not deterred from using hackney carriages in the 
area.  
 

1.12 The Council’s Table of Fares can only set a maximum charge and therefore drivers 
are permitted (in negotiation with their passengers) to charge a lower fare at their 
own discretion. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 Following the recent rises in fuel prices, a review of the Hackney Carriage Table of 

Fares is in keeping with the Council’s priority of Driving Economic Vitality. 
 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. 
 

Page 56



4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications for the Council in implementing the 

recommendations.    
 
4.2 An increase in fares would have a financial effect on taxi-users throughout the 

district of Hambleton (i.e. an increase of £1.50 for the first mile of any journey but no 
increase in the rate beyond the first mile). 

 
4.3 Hackney carriage businesses would benefit from the increase to help off-set 

increasing fuel costs.  Any increase in fares would incur a small, one-off cost to all 
hackney carriage proprietors for a meter recalibration.   

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The procedure for setting fares along with the associated public notice requirements 

are contained within section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976.  

 
5.2 In accordance with the Act, the proposed Table of Fares was advertised at the 

Council offices and by way of a notice in a local newspaper stating a period (not 
less than 14 days from the date of publication) within which interested parties may 
lodge objections.  Where objections are received, the Council shall set a further 
date (not later than two months from the first specified date), at which time the 
Table of Fares shall come into force with or without modifications as determined by 
the Council after consideration of the objections. 

 
5.3 No variation will be applied to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares until such time 

as the Council’s legal obligations have been satisfied in this regard. 
 
5.4 Section 9D of the Local Government Act 2000 provides that any function of a local 

authority which is not specified in the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 is to be the responsibility of an 
executive of the authority under executive arrangements. The power to fix hackney 
carriage fares under section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976 is not specified in the regulations and is therefore the responsibility of an 
executive of the authority under executive arrangements. Hambleton District 
Council’s Constitution delegates responsibility for executive functions to Cabinet 
and therefore any decision in this regard must be referred accordingly. 

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Disability is a protected characteristic within the meaning of the Equality Act 2010. 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not, the Council 
must endeavour to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and take steps to meet their needs. 

 

Page 57



6.2 A balance must be sought to allow hackney carriage drivers to make a reasonable 
living from their trade whilst also removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by 
persons who have relevant protected characteristics. 

 
6.3 The maximum Table of Fares applies equally to all licensed hackney carriage 

vehicles. The driver of any hackney carriage vehicle must provide reasonable 
assistance to wheelchair users and must not make any additional charge. 

 
7.0 Recommendations    
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet considers the objections and either: 
 
 (1) approves the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares contained in Annex A to this 

report to take effect from 1st October 2022, or 
 
 (2) modifies the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares with the modified Table of 

Fares to take effect from 1st October 2022.   
 
 
Gary Nelson 
Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Background papers: Report and Minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting dated 

10 June 2022 
 
Author ref: GN 
 
Contact: Gary Nelson 
  Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 

Page 58



Draft Hackney Carriage Table of Fares 
Date TBC 

TARIFF 1 From 7am to Midnight on any day except public holidays, Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve 
£5  
for the first mile or part thereof 

£0.20 
Each additional 1/10 mile or part thereof 

£0.20 
Each period of 45 seconds or part thereof 

TARIFF 2 From Midnight to 7am on any day 
All day on any public holiday, Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve 

£6  
for the first mile or part thereof 

£0.20 
Each additional 1/10 mile or part thereof 

£0.20 
Each period of 45 seconds or part thereof 

TARIFF 3 All day on Christmas Day & New Year’s Day 
£10  
for the first mile or part thereof 

£0.50 
Each additional 1/10 mile or part thereof 

£0.50 
Each period of 45 seconds or part thereof 

Call Out or Summonsing Charge 
Maximum to be added to any journey where the vehicle has been called out or 
summoned from another location (only chargeable if agreed at time of booking). 

£5.00 

Soiling Charge 
Cleaning costs and loss of earnings when a passenger soils a vehicle by any means. £60.00 (maximum charge) 
Extras 
For carriage of persons in excess of four, where licensed to do so. £1.00 per person 

Notes 
• The meter must be engaged for every journey, whether the vehicle has been pre-booked or not.
• The driver cannot charge in excess of this table of fares for any journey within the district of Hambleton.  If the hiring takes the

journey outside the district of Hambleton, the driver cannot charge any more than this table of fares allows unless a fare has
been agreed with the hirer before the commencement of the journey.

• Drivers are permitted to negotiate a fare provided they do not charge any more than the table of fares allows.

Annex A

Page 16Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B 

Fri 15/07/2022 13:08  
What do you think of this. I think it is targeting the wrong members of the public.. an elderly person 
coming into town and home again it's going to cost them an extra £3 and yet a businessman going to 
Leeds Bradford airport it's going to cost an extra £1.50... where is the justice in that..you should have 
raised the rolling mile to 25 pence and 35 pence after midnight and kept the starting rates the 
same...just my thoughts on the subject.. 

Tue 19/07/2022 19:24  
Greetings, Thanks for sending me the proposed taxi fare increase, I think that the 43% increases 
from £3.50 to £5 is excessive in my opinion. I would like to suggest that that the fairs should go up to 
£4.00 in August 2022 then another 50p rise on January 1st 2023. I fear a serious backlash if you 
continue to implement a rise to £5.00p, many of my customers are struggling to cope with the 
viscous cost of living hike and a massive rise in the cost of a taxi fare would seriously effect my 
business. 

Wed 03/08/2022 10:12 
Hi I wish to object this tariff Increase as it is not a increase . suggestions in the lines of the initial start 
up tariff going up to £4  and maybe 5P on the rolling charge would be better suited maybe 
something to consider as this will affect on the longer journeys instead of the people that we take 
round town. 

Thu 04/08/2022 15:49 
Good morning I would like to lodge an objection to the revised table of fares approved by the 
cabinet last month as recommended to them by the licensing committee. Firstly a rise of £1.50 on 
the starting price is hitting those who can least afford it the most ie the elderly and young families 
who some will stop using taxis, i appreciate it is a rise to our income if doing lots of local work in and 
around town which i do very little off and then a rise of a very small 75p per job for working the 
unsociable hours between midnight and 7am its a joke. You asked the trade for their suggestions 
before considering altering the fares and i think you received 15 responses, one wanted no increase, 
eight stated an increase was needed but didn't specify by what means but six of those responses 
clearly stated a rise in the rolling mile rate was required to give the drivers a better rate for work 
especially like myself who sometimes can do 2 or 3 jobs a day but drive 400+ miles to earn as your 
proposing a measly £3 or £4 extra. This does not help me cover the extra cost with not just fuel but 
servicing insurance etc. I don't understand your logic for the decision, you have clearly not taken into 
account the requests to increase the rolling mile rate. Please listen to what we are asking for and 
help the trade you are their to represent,  earn a viable living from been a taxi driver. 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: Annual Report to Cabinet on Audit, Governance And 

Standards Committee Activities 2021/22 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a report which analyses the work 

undertaken by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee up to 
31 March 2022. An analysis of the work undertaken is attached at Annex A. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The activities undertaken by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

ensure that the Council is operating in accordance with the Governance 
arrangements of the Council. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
 
3.1 There are no risks associated with the report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications. However, the Audit, Governance and Standards 

Committee is obliged by its terms of reference to report annually to Cabinet on 
the Committee’s activities. 
 

6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 There are no equality and diversity implications to this report 
 
7.0 Recommendation 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet endorse the report of the Audit, Governance and 

Standards  Committee. 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Councillor N Knapton 
Chairman - Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
 
 
 
 
Background papers: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee reports for 2021/22 
 
Author ref: JI 
 
Contact: Dr Justin Ives 
 Chief Executive 
   
  

Page 64



Annex ‘A' 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

 
Work Undertaken During 2021/22 
 
1.  External Audit – Ernst & Young LLP 
 
 Ernst & Young, as the Council's external auditor from April 2021 to March 2022, 

presented reports that covered:-  
 

➢ Statutory Auditor's report on the 2019/20 Audit – the Annual Results Report was 
presented in March 2022 and received by the Committee. There were some 
recommendations and appropriate Management Responses were agreed. These 
accounts have still not been officially signed off. 

 
2. Internal Audit – Veritau North Yorkshire Ltd 
 

➢ Presented the 2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Report, where a substantial 
assurance opinion of the organisation was given.  The Report was accepted. 

 
➢ Internal Audit Progress Reports - a comparison of the actual performance against 

target throughout the year in the quarterly reviews.  The committee was satisfied 
with the performance and the internal audit review programme was completed in 
the year. 

 
➢ The Veritau Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Information Governance Plans 

2022/23 were presented. 
 
3.  Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption – Veritau North Yorkshire Ltd 
 

➢ Counter Fraud Annual Report 2020/21 was reported and accepted. 
 

➢ The Counter Fraud Framework Update was reported 
 
➢ Counter Fraud Progress Reports – an update was provided to Committee on a 

quarterly basis. 
 
4.  Accounts and Governance – Hambleton District Council Officers 
 
 These reports cover the presentation of: 
 

➢ The Statement of Accounts 2019/20  -  These statutory financial accounts were 
presented to Committee in March 2022 alongside the Audit Results report.   

 
➢ The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019/20– this a statement required 

by statute which follows the guidelines issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance (CIPFA). It describes the internal control environment and the steps the 
Council has taken to ensure:- 

• its business is undertaken in accordance with the law; 

• it maintains proper safeguards that provide good governance; 

Page 65



• public money is safeguarded, and; 

• its resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively.   
 
The Committee agreed with the conclusion of the review and approved the content 
of the AGS.  This statement was updated and revised in line with the finalisation of 
the audit presented in March 2022 and approved. 
 

➢ CIPFA Financial Management Code –   was undertaken and report presented to 
Committee. It demonstrated s culture for strong, sustainable financial management 
giving assurance that the authority is managing resources effectively. Members 
received the report and endorsed the position. 

 
➢ Review of Annual Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 and Review of Capital 

Strategy 2022/23 in accordance with CIPFA best practice. 
 
5.  Risk Management – Hambleton District Council Officers 
 
 The Committee received an Annual Review of the Council’s risk management process.  

The Project Risks are aligned with the Key Corporate Projects as identified in the 
Council Plan. The Service Risks with a net risk threshold of 12 and Corporate Risks 
had also been reviewed with all three areas of risk being updated in the risk register. 

 
6. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act – Hambleton District Council Officers 
 

➢ Review of activity was reported on a bi-annual basis where all were nil and 
accepted. 
 

➢ The review of the  Policy on the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act was 
approved. 

 
7. Constitution and other work  
 
 The Committee received reports covering:- 

 
➢ Politically Restricted Posts 

 
➢ Annual Report Code of Conduct complaints was presented to committee 

 
➢ Annual report to Cabinet on Committee’s activities for 2021/22 

 
➢ Annual review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference 

 
➢ Report programme 2022/23 

 
8. Standards 
 

The Committee has responsibility for the Standards regime. The Standards Hearings 
Panel has not considered any complaints under the District Council's Code of Conduct 
Allegations Procedure. 

 

Page 66



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: Discretionary Council Tax Rebate Scheme - Support For 

Energy Bills  
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P Wilkinson   
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed Discretionary Council Tax 

Rebate Scheme criteria that is being recommended for approval.   
 
1.2 Central Government announced a package of support for households with rising 

energy costs.  Although the government have called the scheme ‘Council Tax 
Rebate’ it is important to note that this is not a discount off the council tax bill.   
 

1.3 The Council Tax Rebate scheme is effectively in two parts.  The core scheme which 
is determined by central government which provides a £150 non repayable rebate 
for eligible households in council tax bands A-D, and  a £144 million discretionary 
fund for billing authorities to support other households who are energy bill payers 
but are not eligible under the terms of the core band A-D scheme. The council has 
received £153,450.    

  
1.4 The billing authority is responsible for deciding how best to provide discretionary 

payments to other households, in their area, who are energy bill payers but not 
eligible under the  criteria for the Council Tax Rebate.  This can include households 
living in council tax bands E-H that are on income related benefits or those where 
the energy bill payer is not liable for Council Tax.   
 

1.5 Due to the limited funds it is not possible to provide support to all households in 
council tax bands E-H, so it is important when designing our local discretionary 
scheme, to balance the provision of targeted help for households, whilst ensuring 
the scheme is not overly burdensome to administer.  The proposed eligibility criteria 
to best meet government issued guidance and the needs of residents, is to provide: 

 

• A single one-off payment of £150 to occupied households in bands E-H who 
are receiving Council Tax Reduction as of 1 April 2022.   
 

• A single one-off payment of £150 to residents of multi occupied properties, 
as of 1 April 2022, where the resident is not liable for council tax but is 
responsible  for paying energy bills directly to an energy provider.  These are 
ineligible under the core scheme. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



• A single one-off payment of £150 to occupied households  in bands E-H as 
of 1 April 2022, who have class U exemption due to severe mental 
impairment  

 
1.6 Where it is clear to the council that the household meets the eligibility criteria and 

bank details are known then payments will be made automatically.  Where the 
household circumstances are required to be verified or no bank details are held 
then an application form will be required to comply with the prepayment checks we 
are required to carry out. 

 
1.7 The delegated authorities would ensure that any required technical scheme 

changes could be updated promptly to ensure spending of the allocated funding is 
managed to maximise support to households in need. 
 

2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The Council Tax Rebate Discretionary Scheme supports our corporate priority to 

enhance health and wellbeing of residents by supporting warm and healthy homes.   
 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks in approving this report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 

 4.1 The government grant allocated by the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities in respect of the Discretionary Council Tax Rebate scheme is 
£153,540.  This is a cash limited fund  therefore expenditure will need to be 
contained within the cash limited amount payable. 

 
 4.2 Any unspent funding by 30 November 2022 will be required to be repaid to 

government. 
 
 4.3 Reasonable costs of administering both the core and discretionary council tax 

rebate scheme are funded by government in accordance with its new burden’s 
doctrine.  The Council has received £45,238 to support administration and 
implementation costs. 

  
 4.4 The council tax system is  not designed to make energy payments and therefore an 

alternative solution is required.  The £6,676 costs of procuring an external solution 
to  administer the discretionary scheme and capture the required management 
information for reporting back to central government will be covered by the new 
Burdens Funding. 

 
 4.5 Central government will undertake a reconciliation exercise against actual 

expenditure later in 2022/23 
 
  

Page 68



5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities has issued “Support 

for energy bills – the council tax rebate 2022-23:billing authority guidance”, which 
sets out how authorities should administer the Council Tax Rebate and associated 
Discretionary Fund for households as part of a package of support for rising energy 
costs.   

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1  Equality and diversity issues have been considered with the grant scheme.  There 

are no issues pertinent to implementing this report. 
 
7.0 Recommendations      
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves: 
 
 (1) the proposed Council Tax Rebate Discretionary Fund 2022-23 scheme as set 

out in this report; and 
 
 (2) delegating authority to the Council’s Section 151 Officer to make 

amendments to the Council Tax Rebate Discretionary Scheme eligibility 
criteria to ensure that government  funding is directed to support vulnerable 
households, if needed. 

 
  
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Background papers: Support for Energy Bills – the Council Tax Rebate 2022-

23:Billing Authority Guidance   
 
Author ref: SG 
 
Contact: Susan Grant 
  Taxation and Benefit Manager  
  01609 767220 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 September 2022 
 
Subject: Non Domestic Discretionary Rate Relief - Heat Network 
  
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the changes to the discretionary 

rates relief policy to reflect the introduction of a discretionary rate relief scheme 
giving business rate relief for properties that are used for the purpose of a heat 
network. 

 
1.2 From April 2023 central government intends to introduce legislation to award a 

100% heat network rate relief for business premises that are wholly or mainly used 
for generating a  low carbon source heat network facility for the purpose of space 
heating, space cooling or domestic hot water. 

 
1.3 However, as the relief is to apply from 1 April 2022, central government  expects 

billing authorities to  use their discretionary relief powers under section 47 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 to award this relief where a business meets 
the eligibility criteria as determined by central government. 

 
1.4 The discretionary rate relief would be applicable for the 2022/23 financial year only 

as legislation will ensure awards from 1 April 2023.  For 2022/23 the discretionary 
rate relief would allow for 100% rate relief where the business premises have their 
own rating assessment and meet the criteria set out by central government 
guidance. 

 
1.5 To be eligible for the heat network relief the business premises must be: 

a) wholly or mainly used for the purpose of a heat network 
b) the heat is expected to be generated from a low carbon source based on a 
forecast at the start of April 2022 

 
1.6 As the definition of a low carbon heat network is widely recognised and understood 

in the sector, local authorities can expect operators of such networks to be able to 
identify and evidence any eligibility to the relief. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The provision of this scheme will provide help to support businesses in the relevant 

sectors.  This links to the Council’s priority for Driving Economic Vitality.  The 
initiative also links to the Council’s priority on Caring for the Environment.  

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks in approving this report  
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Central government expects Local Authorities to grant relief to qualifying ratepayers 

in line with the eligibility criteria it has set in its guidance and will fully reimburse 
billing authorities that use their discretionary relief powers under section 47 of the 
Local Government Act 1988 for the actual cost incurred in awarding any reliefs.  
This will be reimbursed under the section 31 grant scheme. 

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The Government is asking local authorities to use their discretionary powers under 

Section 47 of the Local Government Act 1988 to deliver this relief. 
 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
7.0 Recommendation      
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves the adoption of the heat network rate relief for 2022/23 only 

and to the change to the Non Domestic Discretionary Relief Policy to include the 
new heat network rate relief for 2022/23 as per government guidance. 

  
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Background papers: Business Rates Heat Network Relief: Local Authority Guidance  
 
Author ref: SG 
 
Contact: Susan Grant 
  Taxation and Benefit Manager  
  01609 767220 

Page 72


	Agenda
	3 York and North Yorkshire Devolution Deal
	York and North Yorkshire Devolution Deal - Annex

	4 2022/23 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex A 2022/23 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex B 2022/23 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report

	5 2022/23 Q1 Revenue Monitoring Report
	6 Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
	Annex A - Table of Fares
	Agenda
	3 Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
	HC Fares Report
	Annex A - Current table of fares (HDC)
	Annex B - Consultation responses
	Annex C - Fuel prices
	Annex D - Comparison table
	Annex E - Fares analysis
	Annex F - Proposed table of fares (HDC)


	Annex B - Objections

	7 Annual report on the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee's activities for 2021/22
	8 Energy Rebate Discretionary Scheme
	9 Business Rates - S47 Discretionary Rate Relief – Heat Network Relief



